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PLAINTIFF’S FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT
Plaintiff Alqgélo Binno states as follows:
INTRODUCTION
1. Plaintiff brings this action to put an end to the American Bar Association’s failure to
comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12189,

(ADA), namely their accreditation practices for both public and private American
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Law Schools which discriminate against the blind and visually impaired and result in

the denial of access to a legal education.

The American Bar Association (ABA) is discriminating against Plaintiff, and others

similarly situated, by enacting accreditation standards which deny blind and visually

impaired students equal access to educational opportunities at American Law Schools

by requiring that said law schools administer an entrance exam which is patently

discriminatory. The discriminatory acts and omissions include, but are not limited to,

the following:

d.

The American Bar Association has promulgated accreditation standards for
American Law Schools, known as the “ABA Standards for Approval of Law
Schools” which it knows, or should know, discriminate against blind and
visually impaired law school applicants.

Under Standard 503 of the ABA Standards for Approval of Law Schools, the
ABA requires that every incoming J.D. student have taken a “valid and
reliable” admission test as a prerequisite to admissions. The ABA interprets
this section as imposing a heightened burden on law schools to prove the
efficacy of tests other than the “Law School Admission Test sponsored by the
Law School Admission Council.” The ABA knows, or should know, that the
Law School Admission Test is the only widely used commercially available
exam for assessing law school applicants and that the test is inherently
discriminatory to the blind and visually impaired.

A law school which endeavors to grant a reasonable accommodation to a
blind or visually impaired applicant by waiving or exempting the applicant
from completing the inherently discriminatory Law School Admission Test

risks being subject to “appropriate remedial action, have sanctions imposed
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43.

44,

45.

46.

The implementing regulations for Title 11l of the ADA further require that “The
examination is selected and administered so as to best ensure that, when the
examination is administered to an individual with a disability that impairs sensory,
manual, or speaking skills, the examination results accurately reflect the individual's
aptitude or achievement level or whatever other factor the examination purports to
measure, rather than reflecting the individual's impaired sensory, manual, or
speaking skills (except where those skills are the factors that the examination
purports to measure).” 28 CFR 36.309(b)(1)(i) (emphasis added).

By promulgating the ABA Standards for Approval of Law Schools, and specifically
Standard 503 thereunder, Defendant has required all law school applicants to take the
Law School Admission Test which is an examination within the meaning of 28 CFR
36.309.

The ABA has published a “Consultant’s Memo” acknowledging that the organization
has reviewed the contents of the Law School Admission Test and finds the test to be
“valid and reliable” and thus in compliance with Standard 503. A copy of the
“Consultant’s Memo” is incorporated herein and attached as “Exhibit-D.”

The “Consultant’s Memo” outlines the American Bar Association’s requirement that
any procedure for a law school to seek a variance or waiver of their obligation to
require the LSAT under Standard 503 must be programmatic in nature. While
Standard 802 permits a law school to seek a variance from Standard 503, such
variances are defined by the “Consultant’s Memo” as being for “experimental
programs” in the admissions process rather than as an accommodation for an
individual law school applicant, thus leaving Plaintiff with no remedy to seek a

waiver, variance, or exemption from the discriminatory exam.
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47.

48.

49.

50.

51.

52.

Through their acts and omissions as an accrediting organization for US Law Schools,
the American Bar Association has been, and continues to be, inextricably linked to
the administration of the Law School Admission Test.

The American Bar Association requires that the Law School Admission Test be
offered, has reviewed and approved of the contents of the exam under Standard 503,
and imposes harsh sanctions for schools that do not require their applicants to take
the examination.

By promulgating the ABA Standards for Approval of Law Schools, and specifically
Standard 503 thereunder, Defendant has “offered™ and continues to “offer” a
discriminatory examination, within the meaning of Title III of the Americans with
Disabilities Act, as they exercise control in the requirement that the exam be given,
and play a central role in reviewing the contents of the examination to deem it valid
and reliable.

Standard 503 of the ABA Standards for Approval of Law Schools, and the
corresponding sanctions contained in Rule 13 of the Rules of Procedure for Approval
of Law Schools, directly discriminate against Plaintiff, and other qualified individuals
with disabilities, by mandating that the Plaintiff takes an inherently discriminatory
examination and disallowing any law school from waiving the examination as a
reasonable accommodation.

The examination which the Defendant offers within the meaning of Title III of the
Americans with Disabilities Act, demands spatial reasoning and the ability to
diagram, skills that are impossible for a blind or visually impaired applicant to
competitively engage in.

Because the Plaintiff is legally blind, he cannot competitively complete significant

portions of the examination using the methods that are required of all test takers.
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53.

54.

55.

Specifically, by requiring Plaintiff to answer questions that deal with spatial
relationships and diagramming, the test does not effectively measure the Plaintiff’s
aptitude for the study of law, which is the purported intent of the exam, but rather
illegally reflects Plaintiff’s impaired sensory skills in violation of 28 CFR
36.309(b)(1)(i).

Upon information and belief, the American Bar Association has been, and continues
to be aware of, the discriminatory effects of their accreditation requirements and yet
has taken no action to mitigate the effects of its policy.

As the recognized entity for accrediting law schools, and promulgating rules and
regulations for the testing of prospective law school applicants, the Defendant’s
actions have caused, and will continue to cause, significant injury and irreparable
harm to the Plaintiff, and others with disabilities. Plaintiff’s injuries include, but are
not limited to, emotional distress, time lost from education, time lost from profession,
time lost from social interaction, loss of earning capacity, loss of camaraderie, and
pain and suffering.

As stated above, the American Bar Association has failed to comply with the non-
discrimination requirements of Title III of the Americans with Disabilities Act by
offering a discriminatory exam and is woefully in violation of their obligations to
provide accommodations and to refrain from discriminating against persons with
disabilities.

Count II

VIOLATION OF TITLE V OF THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT,

56.

SPECIFICALLY, 42 U.S.C.A. § 12203(b)
Plaintiff incorporates by reference all allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 55,

inclusively.
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57.

58.

59.

60.

ol.

62.

The Plaintiff is a legally blind man who is a “qualified individual with a disability”
under the ADA.

Through the acts and omissions alleged herein, Defendant has acted to coerce,
intimidate, threaten or interfere with Plaintiff’s exercise or enjoyment of rights
granted or protected by the ADA.

Title V of the Americans with Disabilities Act states in pertinent part that It shall be
unlawful to coerce, intimidate, threaten, or interfere with any individual in the
exercise or enjoyment of, or on account of his or her having exercised or enjoyed, or
on account of his or her having aided or encouraged any other individual in the
exercise or enjoyment of, any right granted or protected by this chapter.” 42 U.S.C.A.
§ 12203(b).

By promulgating the ABA Standards for Approval of Law Schools, and specifically
Standard 503 thereunder, Defendant has required law school applicants to take the
Law School Admission Test which it has deemed valid and reliable.

Standard 503 of the ABA standards for Approval of Law Schools, and the
corresponding sanctions contained in Rule 13 of the Rules of Procedure for Approval
of Law Schools, directly discriminate against Plaintiff, and other qualified individuals
with disabilities, by mandating that the Plaintiff takes an inherently discriminatory
examination and disallowing any law school from waiving the examination as a
reasonable accommodation.

Plaintiff has requested this examination be waived as a reasonable accommodation
and because of the Law School Admission Test requirement imposed by Defendant
in Standard 503, has been denied admission by three law schools in the Eastern

District of Michigan, thus forcing the law schools to take into consideration for
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63.

64.

65.

06.

67.

admission purposes his poor performance on a test that discriminates against the
blind and visually impaired.

The examination which the Defendant’s rules require applicants to take, demands
spatial reasoning and the ability to diagram, skills that are impossible for a blind or
visually impaired applicant to competitively engage in.

Because the Plaintiff is legally blind, he cannot competitively complete significant
portions of the examination using the methods that are required of all test takers.
Specifically, by requiring Plaintiff to answer questions that deal with spatial
relationships and diagramming, the test does not effectively measure the Plaintiff’s
aptitude for the study of law, which is the purported intent of the exam, but rather
illegally reflects Plaintiff’s impaired sensory skills in violation of 28 CFR
36.309(b)(1)().

Upon information and belief, the American Bar Association has been, and continues
to be aware of, the discriminatory effects of their accreditation requirements and yet
has taken no action to mitigate the effects of its policy.

As the entity responsible for accrediting law schools, and promulgating rules and
regulations for the testing of prospective law school applicants, the Defendant’s
actions have caused, and will continue to cause, significant injury and irreparable
harm to the Plaintiff, and others with disabilities. Plaintiff’s injuries include, but are
not limited to, emotional distress, time lost from education, time lost from profession,
time lost from social interaction, loss of earning capacity, loss of camaraderie, and
pain and suffering.

Quite simply, the Defendant American Bar Association, by promulgating and
enforcing Standard 503, has made it impossible for the Plaintiff, and those similarly

situated, to apply to law school without being forced to take a discriminatory exam
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68.

69.

70.

71.

72.

being offered illegally in violation of Title Il and Title V of the Americans with
Disabilities Act.

Standard 503 of the ABA standards for Approval of Law Schools thus “interferes”
with Plaintiff’s rights under the Americans with Disabilities Act, including but not
limited to, his right to pursue a legal education without being forced to take a
discriminatory examination prior to his admission to law school.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff requests the relief set forth below.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

Plaintiff prays for the following relief:

A declaration that the American Bar Association’s acts and omissions unlawfully
violate Plaintiff’s rights under the American’s with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA).
An injunction restraining the American Bar Association from engaging in the
accreditation of law schools unless, and until it complies with the requirements of
Title III and Title V of the Americans with Disabilities Act, and ceases its
implementation of Standard 503 of the ABA Standards for Approval of Law Schools,
which discriminates against Plaintiff and other individuals with disabilities.

An injunction restraining the American Bar Association from applying Standard 503
of the ABA Standards for Approval of Law Schools to the Plaintiff and others with
disabilities for whom the rule would have a discriminatory effect.

A further injunction requiring the American Bar Association to provide individuals
with disabilities with full and equal access to the programs and services of the
institutions that they accredit, and restraining the American Bar Association from
discriminating against individuals with disabilities who wish to apply and attend law

schools accredited by them.

16




THE

SAM BERNSTEIN

LAW FIRM

31731 NORTHWESTERN HIGHWAY
SUITE 333
FARMINGTON HILLS,
MICHIGAN 48334-1669

(800) 225-5726

A PROFESSIONAL LIMITED
LIABILITY COMPANY

73. Although Plaintiff seeks no compensatory damages at this time, Plaintiff wishes to
reserve the right to amend and request compensatory damages should it become
necessary to encourage the American Bar Association to comply with federal law.

74. Although Plaintiff seeks no actual attorney’s fees or costs, Plaintiff wishes to reserve
the right to amend and request attorney’s fees and costs should it become necessary to
encourage the American Bar Association to comply with federal law.

75. All other relief that this Court deems just and proper.

Respectfplly submitted,

By M

Richard H. Bernstein (P58551)
Michael J. Blau (P34834)

THE SAM BERNSTEIN LAW FIRM
Attorneys for Plaintiff Angelo Binnno
31731 Northwestern Hwy Ste 333
Farmington Hills, MI 48334

(248) 737-8400

(248) 737-4392 (facsimile)
rbernstein@sambernstein.com
mblau@sambernstein.com

Dated: August 30, 2011

[ hereby certify that on August 30, 2011, I electronically filed the foregoing paper
with the Clerk of the Court using the ECF system, which will send notice of such
filing to all counsel of record.

/s/ Richard H. Bernstein (P58551)
THE SAM BERNSTEIN LAW FIRM
31731 Northwestern Hwy Ste 333
Farmington Hills, MI 48334

(248) 737-8400

(248) 737-4392 (facsimile)
rbernstein@sambernstein.com

17




THE

SAM BERNSTEIN

LAW FIRM

31731 NORTHWESTERN HIGHWAY
SUITE 333
FARMINGTON HILLS,
MICHIGAN 48334-1669

(800) 225-5726

A PROFESSIONAL LIMITED
LIABILITY COMPANY

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF MICHIGAN

SOUTHERN DIVISION

ANGELO BINNO, )
)
Plaintiff, )

) Honorable Denise Page Hood
v. )

) Case No.: 2:11-cv-12247

THE AMERICAN BAR ASSOCIATION, )
)
Defendant. )
)
/

THE SAM BERNSTEIN LAW FIRM

Richard H. Bernstein (P58551)

Michael J. Blau (P34834)

31731 Northwestern Hwy Ste 333

Farmington Hills, M1 48334

Phone: (248) 737-8400

Email: rbernstein@sambernstein.com
mblau@sambernstein.com

Attorneys for Plaintiff

DICKINSON WRIGHT PLLC

David R. Deromedi (P42093)

Alyson A. Miller  (P71095)

500 Woodward Ave., Ste. 4000

Detroit, M1 48226

Phone: (313) 223-3500

Email: dderomedi(@dickinsonwright.com
amiller@dickinsonwright.com

Peter H. Webster  (P48783)

2600 W, Big Beaver Rd., Ste 300

Troy, M1 48084

Phone: (248) 433-7200

Email: pwebster@dickinsonwright.com

Attorneys for Defendant

INDEX OF EXHIBITS TO
PLAINTIFE’S FIRST AMENDED COMPLAINT

Exhibit:

A Printout from the Law School Admission Council (LSAC) Website

B Example of a Law School Admission Test (LSAT) Logical Reasoning Question

C Letter from the Law School Admission Council (LSAC) Dated May 25, 1995

D American Bar Association’s August 2009 “Consultant’s Memo”




Exhibit A

Printout from the Law School Admission Council (LSAC) Website




5/17/2011 LSAC - About the LSAT

ABOUT THE LSAT

Register Now _ .
The Law School Admission Test (LSAT) is a half-day, standardized test administered four times each year at
designated testing centers throughout the world. All American Bar Association (ABA)-approved law schools,
most Canadian law schools, and many other law schools require applicants to take the LSAT as part of their
admission process, It provides a standard measure of acquired reading and verbal reasoning skills that law
schools can use as one of several factors in assessing applicants.

In the United States, Canada, the Caribbean, and some other countries, the LSAT is administered on a
Saturday, except in June, when it is generally administered on a Monday. For Saturday Sabbath obseners, the
test is also administered on a weekday following Saturday administrations.

Many law schools require that the LSAT be taken by December for admission the following fall. Howewer, taking
the test earlier—in June or September—is often advised.

Some schools place greater weight than others on the LSAT; most law schools do evaluate your full range of
credentials.

View Video: About the LSAT

Test Format

The test consists of five 35-minute sections of multiple-choice questions. Four of the five sections contribute to
the test taker's score. The unscored section, commonly referred to as the variable section, typically is used to
pretest new test questions or to preequate new test forms. The placement of this section will vary. A 35-minute
writing sample is administered at the end of the test. LSAC does not score the writing sample, but copies of the
writing sample are sent to all law schools to which you apply.

What the Test Measures

The LSAT is designed to measure skills that are considered essential for success in law school; the reading and
comprehension of complex texts with accuracy and insight; the organization and management of information and
the ability to draw reasonable inferences from it; the ability to think critically; and the analysis and evaluation of
the reasoning and arguments of others.

The three multiple-choice question types in the LSAT are:

* Reading Comprehension Questions
These questions measure the ability to read, with understanding and insight, examples of lengthy and
complex materials similar to those commonly encountered in law school. The Reading Comprehension
section contains four sets of reading questions, each consisting of a selection of reading material, followed
by five 1o eight questions that test reading and reasoning abilities.

» Analytical Reasoning Questions

Isac.org/jd/L.SAT/about-the-LSAT.asp 172




5/17/2011 LSAC - About the LSAT
These questions measure the ability to understand a structure of relationships and to draw logical
conclusions about that structure. You are asked to reason deductively from a set of statements and rules
or principles that describe relationships among persons, things, or events. Analytical Reasoning guestions
reflect the kinds of complex analyses that a law student performs in the course of legal problem solving.

+ Logical Reasoning Questions
These questions assess the ability to analyze, critically evaluate, and complete arguments as they occurin
ordinary fanguage. Each Logical Reasoning question requires the test taker to read and comprehend a
short passage, then answer a gquestion about it. The questions are designed to assess a wide range of
skills involved in thinking critically, with an emphasis on skiils that are central to legal reasoning. These
skills include drawing well-supported conclusions, reasoning by analogy, determining how additional
evidence affects an argument, applying principles or rules, and identifying argument flaws.

Repeating the Test

Test takers frequently wonder whether they can improve their LSAT score by taking the test a second time. If
you believe that your test score does not reflect your true ability—for example, if some circumstance such as
illness or anxiety prevented you from performing as well as you might have expected-—you should consider
taking the test again. Data show (POF) that scores for repeat test takers often rise slightly. Howewer, if your score
is a fairly accurate indicator of your ability, it is unlikely that taking the test again will result in a substantially
different score. You should also be aware that there is a chance your score will drop. Law schools must have
access to your complete test record, not just your highest score; therefore, LSAC will not honor requests for
partial score reports.

Unusually large score differences are routinely reviewed by LSAC. This could involve handwriting analysis of the
writing sample and other documents, a comparniscn of thumbprints, or comparison of a test taker's answers to
the answers of other test takers seated nearby in the testing room. The same comparisons may be performed in
cases of alleged misconduct or iregularity.

L aw schools may compare your original test score to your scores on subsequent tests. You should notify law
schools of any facts relevant to the interpretation of your test resuits, such as illness or extenuating
circumstances. If there is no reason to believe that one score represents a truer estimate of an applicant’s
ability, schools are advised that the average score is probably the best estimate of ability—especially if the tests
were taken over a short period of time.

NOTE: LSAC does not automatically inform law schools of a candidate's registration for a retest. ltis
your responsibility to inform law schools directly about your registration for additional tests,

Limitations on Test Taking

Normally, you may not take the LSAT more than three times in any two-year period. This policy applies even if
you cancel your score or it is not otherwise reported. LSAC reserves the right to cancel your registration, rescind
your admission ticket, or take any other steps necessary to enforce this policy. However, you may retake the
LSAT if a law school to which you are applying requires a more recent score than any you hawe on record or
approves your retaking the test, and the school provides LSAC with written proof of its requirements or approval
no later than the last day of registration for the test.

LSAT Fees

3 SHARE =

Get Adobe Reader to view PDFs indicated on this site by (PDF)

Isac.org/jd/LSAT/about-the-LSAT.asp
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Exhibit B

Example of a Law School Admission Test (LSAT) Logical Reasoning Question




Case 2:11-cv-12247-DPH -MAR Document 1 Filed 05/24/11 Page 16 of 19

i




Case 2:11-cv-12247-DPH -MAR Document 1 Filed 05/24/11 Page 17 of 19

SECTION 1
Time--35 minules
23 Questions
Directions: Each group of questions in this section is based on a sct of conditions. In answering some of the questions, it may be

useful to draw a rough diagram. Choose the response that most accurately and completely answers each question and blacken the
corresponding space on your answer sheel.

Questions 1-5 4. Any of the following pairs could be the third and
) . fourth digits, respectively, of an acceptable product
A company employee geperates a series of [ive-digit product code, EXCEPT:
codes in accordance with the following rules:
The codes use the dipits 0, 1, 2, 3, and 4, and no others, (A) 0,1
Each digit occurs exactly once in any code. ® 03
The sccond digit has a value exactly twice thal of the (©) 1,0
first digit. ®» 30
The value of the third digit is less than the value of the (E) 3,4
fifth digit.

5. Which one of the following must be true about any

1. Ifthe last digit of an acceptable product code is 1, it acceptable product code?

must be true that the (A)  There is exactly one digit between the digit 0
(A)  first digit is 2 and tl}t: digit 1, o N
B) second digit is 0 (B)  There is exactly one digit between the digit 1

(C)  third digit is 3 and the digit 2. . .
(D) fourth digit is 4 (C)  ‘There are at most two digits hetween the digit 1
(E) fourth digit is O and the digit 3. . N
(D) There are at most two digits between the digit 2
and the digit 3.
There are at most two digits hetween the digit 2

and the digit 4.

2. Which one of the following must be true about any .
acceptable product code? )

(A)  The digit | appears in some position before the
digit 2.

(B)  ‘The digit ) appears in some position before the
digit 3.

(C)  The digit 2 appears in some position vefore the
digit 3.

(D) The digit 3 appears in some position before the
digit 0.

() “The digit 4 appears in some position before the
digit 3.

GO ON TO THE NEXT PAGE.

3. Ifthe third digit of an acceptable product code is not 0,
which one of the following must be true?

(A)  The second digit of the product code is 2.
(B)  The third digit of the product code is 3.
(C)  The fourth digit of the product code is 0.
(D) The fifth digit of the product code is 3.
(E)  The fifih digit of the product code is 1.
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}1:(““.5--;395 14> 42 213+98841277 LAW SERVICES TEST ADMIN, P.o2

Lew 8choo! Admission Services Box 20007
Newtown, PA 189400945

May 25, 1895

Test Administration Group 215.968.1001
FAX2)5.968,1277

Richard H. Bexnstein
3258 Bloomfield Shore Drive
Wwest Bloomfiald, MI 48323

pDear Mr, Baynstailn:

Your reguest for mdditional tast time #-r the June 13, 1385
L,8A% hap haen forwarded to me for responss.

Dus te the amount of additional test time you are rsquesting,
it may be more baneficlal for you to rsquest that the law
schools waive the LBAT test reguirsment.

To requent that the 1aw mchools waiva the LSAT requiremant,
you phoul rafss to the procedures covered in the paragragh on
pags 11 of the -

DBogls concsrning ths waiving of the LSAT ragquirsment,

gince accommodated conditione have not baen sstablished for
ehe Jund 12, 1985 LSAT, you will be refunded $79.00 for the
LSAT xegistyation fes. Please allow approximately two wseks
for racaipt of your raefund check.

T¢ you havae any gusstions Concerning the above, Pisare G0 not
Bepitate to contact Law Services at {215)968-1001,

sincer ,
e ————
‘ m
Tom Ruck
Manager, Test Administration



Exhibit D

American Bar Association’s August 2009 “Consultant’s Memo”




CONSULTANT'S MEMO # 1—Revision 1
August 2009

Standard 503

Introduction

Over the last several months there has been significant publicity about the plans of
several law schools to initiate special admission programs for cohorts of entering
students that do not require the use of the LGAT. We believe that all of these
programs have been brought to the attention of the Accreditation Committee, and
the Committee has had ongoing dialogue with the schools about these programs and
their compliance with the Standards. Rule 25 does not permit me to release
compliance information tied to individual schools, but I am able to provide general
information about the approach taken by the Accreditation Committee and the
Counci in dealing with these special admissions programs.

Standard 503 In General

Standard 503 says in relevant part: A law school shall require each applicant
for admission as a first year J.D. student to take a valid and reliable
admission test to assist the school and the applicant in assessing the
applicant’s capability of satisfactorily completing the school’s educational
program. Additionally, Interpretation 503-1 says: A law school that uses an
admission test other than the Law School Admission Test sponsored by the Law
School Admission Council shall establish that such other test is a valid and reliable
test to assist the school in assessing an applicant’s capability to satisfactorily
complete the school’s educational program.

Interpretation 503-1 makes it clear that the burden is on the faw school to
demonstrate the validity and reliability of any test or assessment methodology, other
than the LSAT, that is used for law school admission purposes. I should note that
"validity" and "reliability" are terms of art in the world of testing. Validity asks if the
scores reflect what the test or assessment method is intended to measure. Reliability
asks if repeated applications of the test or assessment method will produce
substantially the same results. The LSAT has been determined to be a valid and
reliable test for law school admission purposes. For each of the law schools proposing
to use something other than the LSAT for admissions purposes, the Accreditation
Committee has asked that the school provide certain information so that the
Committee can determine if Standard 503 and Interpretation 503-1 are satisfied,
and if not, whether a variance pursuant to Standard 802 is warranted. In each case
where an admissions program implicating the concerns of Standard 503 has been
brought to the attention of the Committee, the schoo! has been asked to answer the
following questions:

Is the Law School using the SAT, ACT, or some test other than the LSAT for
admissions purposes; and if so, what evidence does the School have that the
test is ... a valid and reliable test to assist the school in assessing the
applicant’s capability to satisfactorily complete the school’s educational
program”?




Does the Law School intend to seek and obtain a variance of Standard 503
from the Council?

The basic issue for the Committee to decide under Standard 503 is whether
admissions criteria being employed by the special admissions program are
comparable to the admissions criteria being applied under the standard admissions
program (i.e. the admissions program under which most incoming J.D. students are
admitted). The assessment methods used should be shown to be valid for the
intended purpose (i.e., to assess “the applicant’s capability of satisfactorily
completing the school’s educational program”), by demonstrating that the
performance of students admitted under the special criteria is, in general, about as
good or better than that for students admitted under the standard criteria.

Once the Committee has received and reviewed the requested information, it will
make a determination as to compliance with Standard 503, and Interpretation 503-
1. If the schoo! satisfies the requirements, that ends the inquiry. If the school is not
able to demonstrate compliance through the documentation and evidence it submits,
it can either end the program or seek a variance from Standard 503 pursuant to
Standard 802.

Variances Under Standard 802

Standard 802 provides: If the Council finds that the proposal is nevertheless
consistent with the general purposes of the Standards, the Council may grant the
variance, may impose conditions, and shafl impose time limits it considers
appropriate. The relevant part of Standard 802 is the one relating to experimental
programs. Interpretation 802-1 permits the granting of a variance for an
experimental program based on all of the following:

(1) Good reason to betieve that there is a likelihood of success;
(2) High quality experimental design;

(3) Clear and measurable criteria for assessing the success of the
experimental program;

(4) Strong reason to believe that the benefits of the experiment will be
greater than its risks; and

(5) Adequately informed participation by students involved in the
experiment,

The Accreditation Committee, in assessing the application for a variance, will
consider (among other things) whether the program in question is one that might,
with further evidence from experience, be found to be in compliance with Standard
503 and Interpretation 503-1. It is also important to keep in mind that under
Standard 802 and Interpretation 802-5, variances are school-specific and based on
the circumstances existing at the law school filing the request.




Committee and Council Determinations To Date

The Accreditation Committee, at its April 2009 meeting voted to find one admissions
program that uses a test other than the LSAT in its admissions process in compliance
with Standard 503, The Committee also voted to recommend, and the Council at its
June 2009 meeting voted to approve, variances to Standard 503 for several other
law school admission programs. The applications for variances in these cases were
found to comply with the requirements of Standard 802. The Committee has since
recommended, and the Council approved at its July meeting, a variance for one
additional school. Thus, there are currently five programs not relying on the LSAT for
admissions purposes that have received variances to Standard 503. One school was
able to demonstrate compliance with Standard 503 despite not using the LSAT
because it has a joint degree program that has been using a different admissions
test for many years. The school was able to present historical data showing that the
students admitted using the other test performed as well as, or better than, students
admitted who presented an LSAT score.

Each school that was granted a variance received a letter detailing the terms of the
variance and the response required by the law school over the five year period of the
variance. Even though the details of the variances are confidential pursuant to Rule
25, the critical part of the letter that each schecol received reads in part:

CONCLUSIONS:

(2) In accordance with Standards 503 and Interpretations 503-1 and 503-2,
the Committee concludes that it has reason to believe the admissions
criteria employed under the Program may be comparable to the
admissions criteria applied by the Law School under its regular
admissions program, and that the assessment methods used in
connection with the Program may be valid and reliable for the purpose of
assisting the Law School and applicants to assess the applicant's
capability to successfully complete the Law School’s educational
program.

(3) The Committee further concludes that the Program is consistent with the
general purposes of the Standards, within the meaning of Standard 802.

(4) The Committee further concludes that the Program is an experimental
program based on all of the following:

{1) Good reason to believe that there is a likelihood of success;
(2) High quality experimental design;

(3) Clear and measurable criteria for assessing the success of the
experimental program;

(4) Strong reason to believe that the benefits of the experiment will be
greater than its risks; and




(5) Adequately informed participation by students involved in the

experiment.
(5) The Committee recommends that the Council grant a variance under
Standard 802 and Interpretations 802-1(b) and 802-5 for five years to the
Law School with respect to the Program, as presented by the Law
- School, and to the admissions criteria used in connection with the
Program.
RESPONSE REQUESTED:

In the event the Council grants a variance, the Committee requests that the Law
School report by September 15 of each year regarding the following:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(

(9)

(h)

For the most recent entering class, the number of students who applied
for admission under the Program, the number of those students admitted,
and the number who matriculated.

For the various student populations referred to in paragraph (a), the
distribution, mean, median, and standard deviation of the folfowing: SAT
score; ACT score; UGPA; and LSAT scores for those applicants under
the Program who took the LSAT and reported LSAT scores.

A report on the reliability of the assessment method used in connection
with the Program.

A report on the performance (including means, medians, and standard
deviations) of students who matriculated under the Program, with respect
to first semester Law School GPA, first year Law School GPA, cumulative
GPA, attrition, graduation rate, bar passage, and employment,; and a
comparison of such data with corresponding data for students who
matriculated under the Law School’s regular admission program.

A report on any other evidence or studies regarding the validity of the
assessment method used in connection with the Program and the
comparability of that assessment method with the assessment method
used under the Law School’s regular admission program.

A description of the regular admission program of the Law School then in
effect and the assessment method used under it.

A description of the person or persons who performed the psychometric
and other analyses reported to the Committee in connection with
paragraphs (a)-(e), above.

A report on the impact of the Program on the Law School’s obligation to
comply with Standard 212(a), and a description of the actions undertaken
by the Law School to assure compliance with Standard 212(a) in light of
the implementation of the Program.



(i) The information provided to applicants to the Law School under the
Program regarding the experimental character of the admissions aspects
of the Program.

{) The information provided fo applicants to the Law Schoo! under the
Program regarding the possible need for such students to take the LSAT
in order to apply to another faw school as either first-year or transfer

students.

(k) A report on the means by which the Law School complies with
Standard 509 and Interpretation 509-1(1), concerning the publishing of
basic consumer information regarding admissions, for students admitted
to the Law School under the Program. Such consumer information shall
include information on the LSAT scores of students admitted under the
Program, both separately for such students and in the aggregate with all
students admitted to the Law School.

Summary

The Committee urges any school that is considering implementing a special
admission program not requiring the use of the LSAT to consider the analysis above,
to give notice to the Consultant’s Office, and to be prepared to address all the issues
identified and provide the documentation and evidence outlined above.



